
1 
 

 
 

BUDGET COMMITTEE MEETING 
August 28, 2019 

Board Room 
2:00-3:30 p.m.  

MINUTES 
 
CALL TO ORDER:  The meeting was called to order at 2:04 p.m. by Committee Chair, Morris Rodrigue.   
 
ROLL CALL: 

   

x Jill Ault x Sue Loring x Tom Masulis  Student Rep. 

x Andy Fields x Crystal Mair x Morris Rodrigue   

x Katie Littlepage x Tom Martin x Susan Schroth   

 
 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES:  May 15, 2019.  Schroth/Littlepage. Discussion- none. Motion carried with 
three (3) abstentions; Fields, Mair and Masulis. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENTS- None  
 
REPORTS  
Morris shared a California Community Colleges update, dated July 12, 2019 (Handout) 
  

One of the key things Morris asked the committee to look at was the Student Centered Funding Formula. 

The new formula was implemented in 2018-19, and our estimated TCR was approximately $44.5M, and 

that is what we budgeted at that time. It has gone up and down between $45M - $47M, and we won’t 

know the final number until February, but we are confident in a reasonable estimation of receiving 

$45.2M. If it’s comes in less than this number we will owe money, if it comes in higher the state will send 

a one-time payment for the difference.  

 

There will be changes with the funding formula for next year.  With part of the trailer bill language, they 

made adjustments.  They will stay with the base, supplemental and metrics components, but will be re-

benching the metrics to 70/20/10. 

 70% is the base allocation that includes the three year average for credit FTES and carves out 
special admit and non-credit FTES.  

 20% is a three year average for the California Promise, Dreamers and Pell students.  

 10% is for certificates, degrees and transfer courses in English and Math etc. in the first year.   
 

They added another year to the hold harmless, which could help if we land at the bottom. The 

Chancellor’s Office and Department of Finance have had different definitions on how they measure 

transfer degrees, and how units were taken and counted was also factor. This will reduce our total count. 



BUDGET COMMITTEE                                                
  2                           

 
 

Morris said we may know this target by February for formula funding dollars for 2019-20.   

 
DISCUSSION/ACTION 
 
A) Final Budget 2019-20 
 
Morris said we can assume since we did well with the funding formula last year that we will likely do well 

this year. We are assuming $45.2M plus a 3.26% COLA and a half percent deficit for TCR.    This number 

is an estimate we can budget off, but as a reminder we will not know the final number until February.   

One change in the formula limits the use of the summer shift so we are considering not pulling FTES back 

into 2018-19. He also found out at the state level that essentially the number for this year will be the 

Student Centered Funding Formula for 2019-20 or the hold harmless, but not whichever is higher. With 

this in mind, it might lower 2018-19’s number to around $46M, which is why the $45.2M plus COLA for 

this year seems reasonable, and the property tax shortfall, if it recovers, should help us.     

 

Sue said that sounds reasonable but do we often do a deficit factor in the event the state doesn’t fund 

something?  Morris said he believes it is reasonable to expect we can go with the income he is presenting 

today. 

 

Morris went through the numbers that make up the TCR. By this time of the year we usually know more, 

but we are confident with the $45.2M constrained TCR and then we applied the assumed COLA less a 

deficit factor. 

 

Sue said last year the COLA was 2.71%, this year it is supposed to be 3.26% and we got more than a 6% 

increase last year.  Will we still get this year’s COLA?  Morris said he is making an educated guess based 

on the fact they are constraining last year that there is a good chance we will get the 3.26% COLA. COLA 

will not be distributed equally to each group because of the new funding formula method.  Morris said the 

deficit factor is used to hedge the guess little bit, stating we always estimate this time of year, but we used 

to have better capabilities because our estimates were based on FTES versus the new funding formula. 

 

Fund 11 – General Fund 

The total income is over $50M. The TCR is a fixed amount based on our FTES, and includes EPA, 

homeowner’s exemption, timber tax, property tax, and enrollment fees.  Schools receive a portion as a 

base amount and the rest is for apportionment per FTES.  The revenue from enrollment fees has gone 

down a lot due to the California Promise fee waiver.  The college does get reimbursement for some of 

these enrollment fees, but not all. Morris pointed out the 2018-19 estimated actuals on the income side, 

$45.2M TCR, and said the non-resident tuition looks low (page 2).  This is because some of the 2017-18 

revenue didn’t get deferred, and that is why 2017-18 is higher.  

 



BUDGET COMMITTEE                                                
  3                           

 
 

STRS and PERS contributions continue to increase each year. Sue asked what the contribution 

percentages for 2017-18, and 2018-19 and 2019-20.  Sue asked if there has been a 1% increase in STRS 

why is the difference from last year to this year so high. Jill said it is 1% of the salary lines. Sue said it 

doesn’t look like the salary lines went up that much. Jill said they went up by $900,000.00. Tom Masulis 

said that the 2018-19 STRS number looks low. Jill said she would double check it.   

 

Tom Martin asked how they project out salaries each year. Morris said they budget as though all positions 

will be filled.   Tom Martin asked if they take into account that salaries could go up through negotiations.  

Morris said yes.  Tom Martin said it appears that Classified Management has had a 35% increase.  Morris 

said that is not the case, that they have re-categorized some of the managers because they were listed 

as academic when they were originally classified. 

  

Sue said in looking at the STRS increase in the academic salaries, it is a little under a one million 

increase, but 1% of one million is $10,000.00, so the increase in STRS expense doesn’t make sense. 

There was a discussion on how STRS is calculated, and Morris agreed that the STRS number listed in 

this year’s budget does look low, and said he will double check this number.  

 

Andy asked if the discount factor is related to salary savings by positions being vacated. Morris said yes, 

along with budgeting conservatively on the income side. Andy asked if there could ever be a situation 

where it would affect STRS more than the academic salaries.  Morris said potentially it could. 

Katie asked if some academic salaries are not in STRS.  Morris said yes, there could be some odd ones.  

Sue asked about retiree health benefits, and said if the 2018-19 transfer was $1.75M, then the actual cost 

was around $2.5M.  Morris said when they budgeted the $2.7M this year, they make the assumption that 

we are not going to deposit that full amount.  

 

Crystal asked why the work compensation amount is lower this year. Morris said they have been 

aggressive on workers compensation to avoid claims.  Crystal said the unemployment number also 

looked low. Morris said he would check on both these numbers. 

  

Sue asked what operating back charges are. Morris explained that some staff time, such as custodians 

who are assigned to the dorms are charged back to the dorms budget, which is an operating back 

charge. Sue asked about the outgo inter-fund transfer.   Morris said they plan to recommend to the Board 

to put $500,000.00 in Capital Outlay and $1.75M into the OPEB Trust.  

Sue asked if Capital Outlay funds can be shifted around with Board approval.  Morris said yes, but only 

the dollars transferred from Fund 11, not scheduled maintenance dollars.  Morris said the OPEB Trust 

dollars can also be accessed as well, just not all of it.    

 



BUDGET COMMITTEE                                                
  4                           

 
 

Morris explained that the idea behind the OPEB Trust is as an institution we promised health benefits to 

employees, and those benefits were defined by union contracts. The Faculty Association contracts, for 

example, pre 1989 have the best retiree health benefits plan, and then from 1999 forward the benefits 

became less and less.  Now it’s very limited and depends on hire date.  Health benefits are a costly 

expense for those hired years ago, but as that population of people goes away that number goes down 

overtime. The reason we are trying to fund it quickly is because we made a promise to those employees 

and we are responsible for that liability.  Morris said approximately 6% of our budget goes to retire health 

benefits, and if we can get this liability paid down, it frees up dollars for other things.  Plus funding it early 

allows interest to build up more quickly.  

 

Sue said she doesn’t see it quite that way because our budget increases each year, and the liability will 

get less and less and less over time.  Sue said last year administration put 10% towards the OPEB Trust. 

Morris said it’s a philosophical difference, the district thinks getting it funded quickly will free up dollars 

sooner.   Morris said they have also been targeting one-time dollars to help fund the OPEB Trust, these 

dollars are not ongoing so they are not used for salary increases. Sue asked about the original plan to 

fund the trust. Morris said the original plan was to amortize the liability over thirty (30) years with a 

payment structure that would meet the liability.  Sue asked what sort of plan we have now if we are not 

following the original plan.  Morris explained that our plan is to stay ahead, and use one-time dollars as 

much as possible to fund the trust. 

 

Sue asked if the Budget Committee approved a plan for funding the trust.  Morris said no the committee 

only makes recommendations, and the committee also has discussions about how to use one-time 

dollars.  Sue said she remembers discussions, but not consensus. Morris said the committee is not a 

decision making body, but makes recommendations based on information they receive and discussions 

that take place.  Sue asked if the committee would be having that discussion this year.  Morris said yes, 

there is discussion on that topic every year.  Sue said it’s called one-time money, but the money that 

funded the OPEB Trust last year came from the general fund.  Morris said yes, but in terms of where it 

resides at the end of the year it is considered one-time because we didn’t know we would have the extra.  

 

Sue said that is where she would say it doesn’t seem clear, because the excess funds are excess and 

could be used to increase salaries. Morris said raises are an ongoing expense, so excess at the end of 

year are considered one-time dollars and once we know they are continuing they can be allocated as 

ongoing.  Sue said last year it wasn’t a straight consensus, there were a couple opposed.  Sue said her 

concern is that the college should have a plan to fund the OPEB Trust, and she understands the Budget 

Committees role is to provide input on developing a budget, but she doesn’t believe as a committee that 

there has been a discussion on a plan or strategy.   



BUDGET COMMITTEE                                                
  5                           

 
 

Morris said the committee typically has the discussion about the same time we get the actuarial report. 

 

Fund 12- Restricted - Categorical and Grants 

This fund zero’s out each year. Tom Martin asked if Fund 12 is only categorical and grants and if these 

numbers are included on page 3. Morris said yes they are categorical and grants, but they are separate 

from page 3.  

Fund 23- General Obligation Bond  

The GO bonds get paid for by property taxes. The county manages these dollars and takes care of the 

payments.  

Fund 24- Lease Revenue Bond  

These are lease revenue bonds supported by the District. 

Fund 25- 2016 New GO Bond 

Fund 34- Revenue Fund   

Food Services, Bookstore, Dorms and Starbucks. The hope is that revenue from Starbucks will offset the 

yearly loss in Food Services.  Andy asked if all income earned in Fund 34 is limited to Fund 34 

expenditures.  Morris said some transferred to Fund 35.   

Fund 35- Repair Fund 

Repair and replacement fund 

Fund 36- Auxiliary Fund 

Harvest Fest, choral group, athletic auction, Gateway to College fundraiser, and various other   

fundraisers.  

Fund 37- Parking Improvement 

Maintenance and repairs to parking lots 

Fund 41- Capital Outlay –Campus Projects (not Bond Projects) 

Fund 43- Bond-Measure H Funds 

Fund 71- Associated Students Rep Fee 

Fund 74- Student Financial Aid Fund.   

Fund 75- Scholarship and Loan Fund (Connected to Fund 77) 

Fund 77- Where endowment Dollars Reside 

Fund 78- Associated Students Funds  

Fund 89- Phi Theta Kappa (PTK) –Student Organization 

 

Tom Martin asked if the improvements to the Regional Public Safety Training Grounds were paid out of 

Fund 11. Morris said yes.  Tom Martin asked how the Shield classes are paid for. Morris said Shield 

classes are separate from the colleges’ classes. If it is a Shasta College class then the college receives a 

per student amount.  If it’s a Shield class the revenue goes to Shield. Tom Martin asked if Shield pays to 



BUDGET COMMITTEE                                                
  6                           

 
 

use the training grounds.  Morris said no, but the plan is that Shield will build some capital for future 

improvements to the area. 

 

Susan asked if the solar project was completed. Morris said no.  PG&E said it might be sometime next 

year before it’s complete due to PG&E needed mechanical and network upgrades. Tom Martin said he 

put in solar and had issues with PG&E, but resolved it. Morris asked Tom Martin to send him any 

information he has on the topic.   

 

Morris asked if there were any thoughts, recommendations or concerns. Schroth motioned to 

recommend the 2019-20 final budget to College Council. Fields second.  

Discussion: Sue asked for clarification on moving the budget forward when she is not comfortable about 

academic salary increases not being included.   Morris said from a union perspective we are transparent. 

Whether we put it in the budget or not it doesn’t change anything other than the size of the negative. 

Morris said it is known that there will be an increase.  Sue asked if at least a projection for the increase 

should be included.  Morris said no, they are aware that increases will happen.  Jill said with the way it’s 

presented you could easily do a comparison, such as 1%.   Morris said the budget gets adjusted all the 

time for raises and other reasons, keeping in mind that this final budget doesn’t determine what is 

negotiated with the unions.  No further discussion. 

Motion carried, with one abstention, Loring. 

The final budget will be moved on to College Council and will be placed on the September Board Agenda. 

 
OTHER/ANNOUNCEMENTS- New members’ introductions: Andy Fields, Dean of Extended Education 
and Tom Martin, CIS Instructor 
 
ADJOURNMENT – 3:35 p.m. 
  
NEXT MEETING - TBD 
   
 
Recorded by: 
 

Sherry Nicholas 

Executive Assistant, Administrative Services  














































	8-28-19 Budget Comm. Minutes
	CCC Update July12, 2019
	Final-Budget 2019-20

